DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE | OFFICE OF THE INSPECTOR GENERAL

September 15, 2020

Laura Lynch

LLynch®@aila.org

Subject: Freedom of Information/Privacy Act Request [20-O1G-316]

Dear Ms. Lynch:

This responds to your Freedom of Information Act request to the Office of the Inspector General
(OIG). Specifically, your request seeks the OIG report related to the Investigative Summary entitled:
“Findings Concerning Improper Hiring Practices, Inappropriate Interactions with Subordinates and a
Contractor, and False Statements by a Senior Executive with the Executive Office for Immigration Review.”

The report responsive to your request has been reviewed. It has been determined that certain
portions of such report be excised pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. 8552(b)(6) and
(7)(C). Consequently, please find enclosed that information which can be released pursuant to your
request.

If you are not satisfied with OIG's determination in response to this request, you may
administratively appeal by writing to the Director, Office of Information Policy (OIP), United States
Department of Justice, 441 G Street, NW, 6th Floor, Washington, D.C. 20530, or you may submit an appeal
through OIP's FOIA STAR portal by creating an account following the instructions on OIP's website:
https://www.justice.gov/oip/submit-and-track-request-or-appeal. Your appeal must be postmarked or
electronically transmitted within 90 days of the date of my response to your request. If you submit your
appeal by mail, both the letter and the envelope should be clearly marked "Freedom of Information Act
Appeal."

For your information, Congress excluded three discrete categories of law enforcement and national
security records from the requirements of the FOIA. See 5 U.S.C. 552(c) (2006 & Supp. IV 2010). This
response is limited to those records that are subject to the requirements of the FOIA. This is a standard
notification that is given to all our requesters and should not be taken as an indication that excluded
records do, or do not, exist.

You may contact our FOIA Public Liaison, Deborah Waller at (202) 616-0646 for any further
assistance of your request. Additionally, you may contact the Office of Government Information Services
(OGIS) at the National Archives and Records Administration to inquire about the FOIA mediation services
they offer. The contact information for OGIS is as follows: Office of Government Information Services,
National Archives and Records Administration, 8601 Adelphi Road-OGIS, College Park, Maryland 20740-
6001, e-mail at ogis@nara.gov; telephone at (202) 741-5770; toll free at 1-877-684-6448.
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Sincerely,

Madeleine yers

Madeleine Ayers
Government Information Specialist
Office of the General Counsel

Enclosure
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» Failed to disclose a close personal intimate relationship she maintained with a member of her
hiring panel;

» The OIG also found that [Jjjjjjj lacked candor and provided several false statements to the
0IG.

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Criminal Division, Public Integrity Section (PIN) declined criminal

prosecution of [

The OIG investigation determined that [ violated the DOJ’s Ethics Handbook for On and Off-
Duty Conduct as well as multiple statutes and regulations, including Title 5 U.S.C. §§ 7351 (Gifis 1o
superiors) and 2302 (Prohibited personnel practices), Title 5 C.F.R. Part 2635 §§ 502(a)(2) (Personal
and business relationships), 702 (Use of public office for private gain), and 703 (Use of nonpublic
information). The investigation also established that [Jjjjjj participated in a guid pro quo scheme in
violation of Title 18 U.S.C. § 201 (Bribery). The investigation also determined that [JJjjjjjj made
material false statements in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 (Statements or entries generally) and 38
C.E.R, § 45,13 (Duty to cooperate in an official investigation).

The OIG previously investigated and found inappropriate hiring practices in EOIR and in the Justice
Management Division (JMD), where worked before joining EOIR. The findings of these
investigations are contained in the following OIG Reports: Repor! Regarding Investigation of
Improper Hiring Practices in the Justice Management Division, July 2012,

https:/ioig justice.gov/reports/2012/51207. pdf; and Report Regarding Investigation of Improper Hiring
Practices by Senior Officials in the Executive Office for Intmigration Review, November 2014,

littps. roig justice.govireports/ 201 4/51 302 pddf.

The OIG has completed its investigation and is providing this report to EOIR for appropriate action.
The OIG is also referring its finding of retaliation by [ to the U.S. Office of Special Counsel.
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following OIG Reports: Report Regarding Investigation of Improper Hiring Practices in the
Justice Management Division, July 2012, itips:/ioig justice.govireparts/2012/51207, pdf;, and
Report Regarding Investigation of Improper Hiring Practices by Senior Officials in the
Executive Office for Immigration Review, November 2014,

https:/oig justice.govireports/2014/s1502.pdf.

Relevant Statutes and Regulations

The DOJ Ethics Handbook for On- and Off-Duty Conduct, referencing 5 C.F.R. 2635.101(b) and
Executive Order 12731, provides 14 general principles of ethical conduct. The principles relevant to
this investigation include:

Employees shall apply the principles set forth in this section in determining whether
their conduct is proper;

1. Public service is a public trust, requiring employees to place loyalty to the
Constitution, the laws and ethical principles above private gain.

3. Employees shall not engage in financial transactions using nonpublic Government
information or allow the improper use of such information to further any private
interest.

6. Employees shall not knowingly make unauthorized commitments or promises of any
kind purporting to bind the Government.

7. Employees shall not use public office for private gain.

8. Employees shall act impartially and not give preferential treatment to any private
organization or individual.

13. Employees shall adhere to all laws and regulations that provide equal opportunity
for all Americans regardless of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, or
handicap.

14. Employees shall endeavor to avoid any actions creating the appearance that they
are violating the law or the ethical standards set forth in this part. Whether particular
circumslances creale an appearance that the law or these standards have been violated
shall be determined from the perspective of a reasonable person with knowledge of the
relevant facts

Title 5 U.S.C. § 2302 ~ Prohibited Personnel Practices — mandates (in pertinent part) that any
employee who has authority to take, direct others to take, recommend, or approve any personnel
action, shall not, with respect to such authority, . . . (4) deceive or willfully obstruct any person with
respect to such person’s right to compete for employment; (6) grant any preference or advantage not
authorized by law, rule, or regulation to any employee or applicant for employment (including defining
the scope or manner of competition or the requirements for any position) for the purpose of improving
or injuring the prospects of any particular person for employment. The regulation further mandates that
any employee who has authority to take, direct others to take, recommend, or approve any personnel
action, shall not, with respect to such authority (8) take or fail to take, or threaten to take or fail to take,
a personnel action with respect to any employee or applicant for employment because of (A) any
disclosure of information by an employee or applicant which the employee or applicant reasonably
believes evidences (i) any violation of any law, rule, or regulation, or (ii) gross mismanagement, a
gross waste of funds, an abuse of authority, or a substantial and specific danger to public health or
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safety, if such disclosure is not specifically prohibited by law and if such information is not
specifically required by Executive order to be kept secret in the interest of national defense or the
conduct of foreign affairs; or (12) take or fail to take any other personnel action if the taking of or
failure to take such action violates any law, rule, or regulation implementing, or directly conceming,
the merit system principles.

Title 5 C.F.R. § 2635.502/2635.502(a)(2) — Personal and business relationship - states that where an
employee knows that a particular matter involving specific parties is likely to have a direct and
predictable effect on the financial interest of a member of his household, or knows that a person with
whom he has a covered relationship is or represents a party to such matter, and where the employee
determines that the circumstances would cause a reasonable person with knowledge of the relevant
facts to question his impartiality in the matter, the employee should not participate in the matter unless
he has informed the agency designee of the appearance problem and received authorization from the
agency designee. Subsection (2)(2) goes on the state that an employee who is concerned that
circumstances other than those specifically described in this section would raise a question regarding
his impartiality should use the process described in this section to determine whether he should or
should not participate in a particular matier.

Title 5 C.F.R. § 2635.702 - Use of public office for private gain - prohibits employees from “using
public office for your own private gain or for the gain of persons or organizations with which you are
associated personally. Your position or title shall not be used: to coerce or induce another person,
including a subordinate, to provide any benefit, financial or otherwise, to you or to friends, relatives, or
persons with whom you are affiliated in a nongovernmental capacity.”

5 C.F.R. 2635.703 prohibits employees from engaging in a financial transaction using nonpublic
information, or allowing the improper use of nonpublic information to further his own private interest
or that of another, whether through advice or recommendation, or by knowing unauthorized disclosure.

18 U.S.C. § 1001 (2006) — Statements or entries generally — makes it a crime to knowingly and
willfully make any materially false or fraudulent statement or representation or falsify, conceal or
cover up a material fact in any matter within the jurisdiction of the executive branch of the
Government of the United States.

38 C.F.R. § 45.13 — Duty to cooperate in an official investigation — requires Department employees to
cooperate fully with the OIG and respond to questions posed during the course of an investigation
upon being informed that their statement will not be used to incriminate them in a criminal proceeding.

Title 5 U.S.C. § 7351 and Title 5 C.F.R. § 2635.302 prohibit solicitation of gifls from subordinate
employees. Specifically, the regulation states an employee may not directly or indirectly, accept a gift
from an employee receiving less pay than her unless: (1) The two employees are not in a subordinate-
official superior relationship; and (2) There is a personal relationship between the two employees that
would justify the gift.

Executive Order 12731 (d) prohibits an employee from soliciting or accepting any gift or other item of
monetary value from any person whose interests may be substantially affected by the performance or
nonperformance of the employee’s duties.
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